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Field Safe Solutions… By the 
Field, For the Field.

Field Safe is a cloud-based software as a service company 
based in Calgary, Alberta. Our easy-to-use applications 
digitize an organization’s entire health and safety program, 
providing clients access to REAL-TIME DATA and the PEACE 
OF MIND that their employees are accounted for at any 
time, anywhere in the world. 

Field Safe Solutions understands the challenges that 
companies face on a daily basis regarding safety and 
accountability. Our innovative software was designed 
and developed BY THE FIELD, FOR THE FIELD for every 
remote worker in any sector — agriculture, construction, 
telecommunications, oil and gas, service industries, utilities, 
mining and many more.

Through up-to-date, accurate and secure information, 
Field Safe can help you manage the safety requirements 
and responsibilities within your business. We believe 
communication is a key component in any business. We 
value the relationships we have with our clients, and we 
strive to turn challenges into opportunities.

Corporate Profile

Simple Icon Set

Actions

Directions

Cloud

Misc IconsAlignment

Media

Documents

Management

Communications

Devices

Users

Lone Worker Monitoring 
Dashboard



FIELD SAFE SOLUTIONS | ANNUAL REPORT 2019

|      |3

Contents

• CEO’s Message ..................................................4

• Competitive Advantages .....................................5

• Commercial Highlights .......................................6

• Field Safe Focus On Enterprise Client ..................8

• Strategic Partnerships .......................................10

• The IBM & Field Safe Advantage ........................11

• Featured Case Study: Energy Services ................12

• Featured Case Study: Land Services ...................13

• Management’s Discussion and Analysis .............14

• Management’s Report.......................................23

• Independent Auditors’ Report ............................24

• Statement of Financial Position .........................27

• Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss........28

• Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity ...29

• Statement of Cash Flows...................................30

• Notes to the Financial Statements .....................31

• Executive Team, Board of Directors and 

Advisory Board .................................................48



FIELD SAFE SOLUTIONS | ANNUAL REPORT 2019

|      |4

CEO’s Message

In November we closed an Enterprise deal which doubled our MRR. This is a major 

win, not just in terms of revenue but also because it is in support of Canada’s largest 

energy project, which is managed by a highly respected Fortune 200 company. It 

puts Field Safe in a cash neutral position, creating high revenue growth without an 

operating cash burn. This is truly a unique position for a fast growth SaaS company.

This large project has also allowed us to secure a strategic partnership with TELUS, 

who is providing data services at the same site. We are now working closely with 

TELUS to execute and deliver on the contract while also pursuing other business 

opportunities as a TELUS partner. This is in addition to our partnership with 

IBM which is providing further Enterprise level opportunities. This partnership is 

illustrated on page 11, which shows us featured inside and on the back cover of 

Watson magazine, IBM’s flagship publication.

We continue to serve a market gap that customers are eager to fill to provide better 

safety processes to their people, and more efficiency to their operation through 

digitized, real-time information. Our clients are seeing significant value through our 

platform’s ability to provide smart workflows that are configurable to their unique 

needs. This is a major reason why we are winning deals and growing rapidly.

 

In 2020, we have already raised capital (at a significantly higher price per share of 

$3.00) to expand into the Houston market and allow us to continue to build upon 

the strong channels our partnerships create. We will open an office in Houston in 

the second quarter of 2020 and already have companies in the market using our 

software. I look forward to continued success in 2020 and creating value for all 

shareholders.

2019 was a transformative year for Field Safe. 
While our over 300% growth in monthly recurring 

revenue (“MRR”) is substantial, the building blocks that 
got us there are equally important. During 2019, we 
signed five Fortune 500 companies as either customers 
or channel partners. At the same time, we grew the 
team to support Enterprise level customers properly and 
effectively and allow for continued growth in 2020. As 
CEO, I am proud to say to investors that we were able to 
achieve exactly what we set out to do.
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“Field Safe hit a 
major turning point 

in November, closing our 
first Enterprise deal with 
a Fortune 200 company. 
Internally, I have been 
calling this Field Safe 3.0, 
as we have re-defined 
ourselves to be able to sell 
into world- class projects. 
I expect this will be the 
first of many with this 
particular client and with 
more Enterprise clients to 
follow.”

Cam Barrett
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Cam Barrett, CEO

May 20th, 2020
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Competitive Advantages

Our  key  compet i t i ve 

advantage is the  ease of 

use of our platform, utilizing 

the phones and tablets that 

are a critical part of our 

daily lives. Field Safe Solutions 

enables organizations to save 

time, save money and save lives.
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“Our system is so easy to use; we 
ship without a manual!”

Cam Barrett, CEO of Field Safe Solutions
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Field Safe knows the health and safety of your 

employees is a top priority. Helping you exceed your 

goals is our mission. Field Safe keeps your workers 

safe and connected any time, anywhere. Our 

applications work on any smart phone or tablet and 

allow your people to:

• Communicate in real-time;

• Electronically complete paperwork; and 

• Access safety manuals as soon as a need arises.

Field Safe’s ease of use encourages user adoption. 

Our “round-trip” workflow encompassed in the 

application creates operational efficiencies across 

your organization, helping you optimize your 

operating spend and make more informed business 

decisions while meeting your primary objective of 

keeping your people safe.

Field Safe resolves the field data capture gap, relaying real- time, 

accurate and secure information between remote workers and 

head office. By digitizing the field, we help you to:

Keep Your People Safe
• Know where your people are and communicate with them at 

any time, anywhere in the world.

• Real-time awareness of potential hazards means you can 

correct and protect your people (and equipment) fast.

• Visibility to the complete life cycle of an incident helps you 

minimize and mitigate future occurrences… and drive a safety 

culture across the organization.

Optimize Operations and Lower 
Costs
• Easy to complete electronic forms reduce the hours required 

and potential errors inherent in manual processes. Keep your 
workers focused on their core roles instead of paperwork.

• More… and more accurate… structured data, improves 
analysis and reporting which in turn helps you make better 
business decisions.

• Regulations change fast. Instant access to safety manuals as 
well as timely field data helps ensure you are compliant with 
all regulations.

• Digitizing field data facilitates up-to-date project status 

communications with stakeholders and clients.
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Commercial Highlights
(To May 20th, 2020)

Field Safe hit a major milestone, closing the largest contract in company history which 
doubled our MRR. This builds upon a transformative year in 2019, where Field Safe  built 

the business to support its product and had growth of MRR of 346%. In addition, the increased 
MRR has allowed Field Safe to be operating cashflow neutral coming into 2020, which is a 
very unique position for a fast growth SaaS company.
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Team

• David Eastham as Director and Audit 

Committee Chairman. David has over 30 

years of  experience in the oil and gas sector 
and is an experienced CEO and Chairman of 
public and private companies.

• Greg Clarke as Vice President of Sales. 

Greg has over 15 years of experience in sales, 
previously working for various multi-national 
companies where he managed key enterprise 
customer  relations with some of the world’s 
most respected brands.

• Colleen Mathews as Vice President of 

Customer Success. Colleen has over 30 

years of experience in ensuring successful 
deployment of technology in both large and 
small enterprises.

• Brad Barber as Director of Sales. Brad 

has over 10 years of sales experience, most 
recently working with various telecommunications 
companies in North America where he managed 
key executive relationships. Brad is working 
towards his MBA at the Edinburgh Business 
School. 

• Santosh Vadivelu as Director of Delivery 

and Customer Success. Santosh has driven 

growth in disruptive tech startups with an 
international footprint that includes North 
America, Australia, Europe and South America.

• Cam Barrett, CEO.  Cam brings over  20 years of selling software and a history as a senior officer focused on increasing 

sales  in  both  large and small businesses such as SAP, Axia, Computer Sciences Corp., and others.

• Danny Hay, CFO. Danny is an experienced CFO as an officer and director of TSX and TSX-v listed companies. 

Most recently he was the CFO of an alternative energy company which sold at a 160% premium to the market price 
on the TSX.

• Paul Aberle, Vice President of New Product Development. Paul is a founder of the company and has been 
developing the core platform for five years.  Paul has over 20 years of development experience and leading teams.

• Ron Visser, Health and Safety Subject Matter Expert. Ron is a recognized expert in the Health and Safety market 

which includes his roles as an expert advisor on the IBM Innovation panel and previous roles on the Boards of several 
Health and Safety advisory groups.

During 2019, Field Safe added key members to management and the Board 
of Directors, including:



FIELD SAFE SOLUTIONS | ANNUAL REPORT 2019

|      |7

• In April, a large grain producer in Manitoba and Saskatchewan 

increased its usage to approximately $2,000 MRR by adding additional 

grain elevators for Lone Worker Monitoring.

• In April, a leading cement company in Western Canada completed a 

full system implementation including Lone Worker Monitoring, Journey 

Management and digitization of its Health, Safety and Environmental 

program for $5,000 MRR.

• In May, a mid-sized E&P producer in Calgary switched its lone worker 

monitoring systems from a competitor to Field Safe for MRR of 

approximately $2,500.

• In May, a large drilling and well servicing company with operations 

throughout North America and the Middle East implemented a full 

implementation of the system for $3,500 MRR. This contract included 

some unique innovation related to monitoring of activities and workflow 

which is proving to be beneficial to multiple customers.

• The signing of the large Enterprise deal in November has allowed Field 

Safe to have minimal to no operating cash burn. This positions Field Safe 

as a fast growth company with strong upside potential, while limiting the 

downside exposure through consistent need for capital 270% growth

• In July, a multi-billion dollar waste management company signed a 

contract for Field Safe to provide configured workflow and digitization of 

their billing systems with field operational data for $5,000 MRR.

• In September, one of the major E&P producers in Calgary added Journey 

Management into its company-wide App Store. Initially, this is for a 

limited subset of users for $1,500 MRR with the potential for increased 

growth as utilization increases.

• In October, Field Safe signed a strategic partnership agreement with 

TELUS, a Fortune 500 Company, to jointly market combined services.

• In November, Field Safe signed its first Enterprise client, a Fortune 200 

EPC company building Canada’s largest energy project. This contract 

has a 3 year term and more than doubles the MRR of the Company.

• Field Safe has on-boarded approximately 10,000 users in 2019 and 

expanded its presence in multiple verticals including agricultural, field 

services, E&P producers, waste management, EPC Companies, trucking 

and others. Field Safe continues to lead the market for digitization that 

can be configured to meet specific customer needs. Our core advantage 

of being the easiest to use product in the marketplace for the field user 

continues to resonate with current and new customers alike.

Commercial Success
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“Since 2014, the 
product has undergone 

development and has attained a 
strong competitive position in the 
market. During the year ended 
December 31, revenue increased 
by $812,919, or by 408% as the 
growth continued.”

Cam Barrett, CEO of Field Safe Solutions
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The signing of the large Enterprise 
deal in November has allowed Field 
Safe to have minimal to no operating 
cash burn. This positions Field Safe as 
a fast growth Company with strong 
upside potential, while limiting the 
downside exposure through consistent 
need for capital.

2017201620152014 2018 Q4, 2019

346% Growth

December Monthly Recurring Revenue (MRR)
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Our client was committed to ensuring its work site was the safest on 

earth for the estimated 33,000 people globally who would be involved 

throughout the lifecycle of this project. They know that digitizing the 

paper forms and documentation of employees, prime contractors and 

subcontractors would need was key to meeting that goal, along with 

enabling use for instantly communication across all teams. More than 

just a supplier, our client needed a partner who would “walk beside 

them,” providing the subject matter expertise they did not have in- 

house and one who would help drive a best in class safety culture. 

Field Safe and our Real-Time Documentation application were chosen 

to manage reference documents for “just in time” access and the 

digital completion of forms. Mobile devices are used to collect field 

data in real-time, relaying it back to supervisors more accurately and 

securely.

 

Field Safe created and consolidated our client’s many forms and 

documents and built workflows that meet their unique needs. Real- 

time communication will improve safety and create operational 

efficiencies by providing the ability to identify, share and act on 

experiences and insights immediately. Expected savings from moving 

from a paper-based process to digital will be huge.

Field Safe Focus On Enterprise Client
“The Safest Project on Earth”
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Global EPC Company leading Canada’s largest LNG project chose 
Field Safe to help create the safest worksite on earth.

“This project was built on the concept 
of shared value. That means stable 

and shared revenue, contract procurement, 
providing training, skills development and 
employment and promoting the social 
welfare of First Nations people. We’re doing 
what we said we would and we have specific 
metrics in place, not only to keep us honest, 
but to demonstrate that we’re already 
keeping our promises.” 

 

Peter Zebedee, CEO of LNG Canada

(Source: LNG Canada)

Simple Icon Set

Actions

Directions

Cloud

Misc IconsAlignment

Media

Documents

Management

Communications

Devices

Users

Source: LNG Canada

Source: LNG Canada
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Workflow Digitization
The project has now moved beyond digitizing paper processes to include the provision of 
additional services at component locations across the globe. Critical processes related to the 
successful management and implementation of defined quality standards in the fabrication 
yards are now going to utilize Field Safe. This will provide project managers real-time visibility 
to the status of these quality checks, notify them when critical outcomes are identified and, 
most critically, enable instant access to the consolidated data being collected from anywhere 
in the world.

Additionally, we are working on creating digitized dashboards, views, reports and data-sharing 
routines to ensure that accountable and responsible individuals in the client organization can 
quickly see the status of their programs and to be able to generate reports or data extracts for 
critical, deeper analysis.

Digitizing paper processes is always the 
first step in a Field Safe Client Engagement. 
Once this initial step is complete, the 
logical next step is to provide visibility 
and access to the collected information. 
Additional workflows are being scoped and 
will be incorporated into the next phase of 
engagement where we will create actions, 
schedule events and organize findings, 
deficiencies, and observations into a central 
management panel to thereby ensure that critical items do not get ignored or forgotten.

The completed project will result in Field Safe delivering to our client a closed-loop solution 
for implementing, supporting and managing their Health, Safety, Environmental and Quality 
programs across related facilities globally.

Field Safe Focus on Enterprise Client
“The Safest Project on Earth”

Source: LNG Canada

“At the peak of construction, 
the project will require 

7,500 construction workers,”
 

Workforce Development Manager of LNG 
Canada

(Source: LNG Canada)
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Strategic Partnerships

• IBM. IBM is a global technology company that provides hardware, software, 

cloud-based services and cognitive computing. As trailblazers in data 

and analytics, IBM is leading the digital transformation of the field. IBM’s 

Watson AI Innovation Programs create value for clients including production 

increases, cost savings, risk identification and incident prevention. Field 

Safe’s ability to capture field data real-time complements IBM’s core data 

analysis solutions, enhancing the powerful analytics IBM is famous for. 
 

Together, IBM and Field Safe help clients embrace “disruptive” digital 

technologies to reshape and re-invent traditional business processes and create 

a digital strategy that positions them as leaders in their respective industries.

• TELUS. TELUS delivers state-of-the-art technology that powers innovation. 

By connecting devices across all ecosystems and facilitating the exchange of 

data across the “Internet of Things”, TELUS creates solutions that enhance an 

organization’s efficiency and  new revenue streams. Field Safe uses TELUS 

data programs to deliver our joint clients (including the global EPC company 

mentioned earlier in this document) a more complete offering. Together, TELUS 

and Field Safe facilitate the real-time transmission of data from the most remote 

and extreme environments, creating instant communication between the field 

and head office.

• STARS© Emergency Link. The STARS Emergency Link Centre (ELC) was 

established in 1996 to meet the needs of businesses with employees working in 

remote locations including oil and gas, forestry, mining, recreation, and movie 

production. Field Safe customers gain extra peace of mind knowing that in 

emergency situations, STARS ELC is notified in real-time and able to provide 

emergency assistance to save lives.

Field Safe has partnered with industry leaders including IBM, TELUS, and STARS© 

Emergency Link to help clients exceed their safety goals, create operational 

efficiencies, and lower costs. We do this by resolving the field data gap, digitally 

relaying information in real-time from remote locations back to head office.

“Partnering with IBM, 
TELUS and STARS not 

only strengthens our ability 
to serve our clients, it’s 
beneficial in terms of helping 
us grow as a company. We 
are proud of our strategic 
partnerships and excited 
by the potential they afford 
Field Safe and our joint 
customers.”

 
Cam Barrett, CEO of Field Safe 

Solutions
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The IBM & Field Safe Advantage

IBM Channel: Watson Magazine

Field Safe Solutions and IBM have partnered to help our clients digitize the 
field to enhance worker safety, create operational efficiencies and lower 
costs. 
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Together, IBM and Field Safe help our clients embrace disruptive digital 

technologies, re-inventing traditional business processes to position them 

as leaders in their respective industries.

As trailblazers in data and analytics, IBM is leading the digital 

transformation of the field. IBM’s Watson Innovation Programs create 

value for clients including production increases, cost savings, risk 

identification and incident prevention.

Field Safe’s applications support health, safety and environment 

programs and help clients save time, save money and save lives. Field 

Safe’s ability to digitally capture field data real-time enhances IBM’s core 

data analysis solutions.

“Partnering with industry leaders 
like IBM not only strengthens our 
ability to serve our clients, it is 

beneficial in terms of helping us grow as 
a company. We are proud to be an IBM 
Innovation Partner, IBM Cloud Partner 
and in the IBM Digital Marketplace.” 

Cam Barrett, CEO of Field Safe Solutions
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• Field Safe was recently on the back cover of the IBM Watson Magazine for the second time.

• Field Safe provides significantly improved front end data capture that can provide better data insights, leading to improved analytics.

• We are an IBM Innovation Partner, IBM Cloud Partner and are in the IBM Digital Marketplace.
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The Challenge:
Our client had been active in a number of mergers and acquisitions that 

resulted in multiple processes and technologies, none of which was easy to use 

or delivered data back to head office in real-time. Existing tools did not allow 

for instant communication between head office and field workers or visibility 

into worker location. Our client was especially interested in finding an easy-to-

use digital solution that team members would readily adopt.

Field Safe’s Solution:
Field Safe’s Lone Worker Monitoring solution was chosen due to its ease of 

use and digital delivery of information between the field and head office. Field 

Safe reviewed existing processes and implemented a standard workflow for all  

North American operations.

Results and ROI:
Field workers were quick to adapt to the new, easy to use solution. Completion 

rates have risen, resulting in an increase in data collection which in turn is 

creating operational efficiencies for head office. Forms completion has also 

improved as information can now be shared instantly and head office knows at 

any given time where their people are and what they are working on.

Next Steps:
The real-time access to data creates many opportunities for operational 

efficiencies. In our role as “trusted advisor” we are coaching our client on how 

to fully leverage their partnership with us to manage that data and drive the 

continuous improvement of their safety program.

Featured Case Study: Energy Services

Easy to use, digital field data collection streamlines processes and creates efficiencies 
for Energy Services firm.

“We have been active in M&A 

which ends up with multiple 

processes and systems. The ease of 

use of Field Safe has allowed us to 

digitize and streamline processes 

quickly and efficiently.” 

Executive VP, energy services company
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Reduced forms completion time. Increased 
forms completion rate. Improved decision 
making through real-time access to data.
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The Challenge:
Our client, a veteran Canadian land management company, was looking to 

improve completion of required daily reporting by its Field Agents and to improve 

compliance with its corporate safety program. They also wanted the ability to 

know where their Field Agents were at any time, anywhere, as well as know the 

status of field activities.

Field Safe’s Solution:
Field Safe’s Lone Worker and Real-Time Documentation applications were chosen 

to bring data from the field in real-time to head office, facilitate communication 

back and forth, and provide the ability to see the location of field workers instantly.

Results and ROI:
Ease of use drove quick adoption of the mobile enabled technology resulting in 

much higher completion rates and improved daily reporting and safety program 

compliance. Head office can now readily see where team members are and what 

they are working on, providing the ability for team redeployment if needed and 

facilitating instant communication with clients regarding project status.

Next Steps:
The real-time access to data creates many opportunities for operational efficiencies. 

In our role of trusted advisor, Field Safe is helping our client manage that data to 

drive additional operational efficiencies that lower costs and improve safety.

Featured Case Study: Land Services
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Land Management company improves safety compliance and operational efficiency 
with real-time forms completion.

“Before Field Safe, we 
had a constant struggle 

to get the Field Agents to 
complete the required daily 
reporting. Now with Field 
Safe, we have a much higher 
rate of compliance which 
yields better information. 
Getting the information 
real-time from the field, as 
opposed to days later, has 
made a significant difference 
to our operation.” 

CEO, Land Management company
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Lone Worker 
Monitoring Dashboard

R e a l - T i m e 
Documentation 
M o n i t o r i n g 
Dashboard
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 

The following management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) for Field Safe Solutions Inc. (“Field Safe”, or the “Company”), prepared as 
at May 20th, 2020  provides a review of the Company’s financial results for the year ended December 31, 2019, and consideration of 
future opportunities. The MD&A should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and accompanying notes for the 
Company for the year ended December 31, 2019.  Field Safe audited financial statements and extracts of those financial statements 
provided within this MD&A were prepared in Canadian dollars and are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS”). 

Readers are cautioned that this MD&A contains certain forward-looking statements. Please see the “Forward-Looking Statements” section 
at the end of this document for a discussion concerning the use of such information in this MD&A. 

Executive Summary 

The Company’s focus is to improve safety and accountability in field data capture of health, safety, and environmental information through 
innovative software.  Through real-time, accurate and secure information Field Safe helps manage the health, safety and environmental 
programs for our customers. 

• Our Vision – to transform the safety experience. 
• Our Mission – to positively engage field workers in a culture of safety.  We will accomplish by providing the easiest to use the 

product in the market to encourage user adoption and better data capture.  We will endeavor to provide a dynamic workflow that 
can provide real-time reporting and efficiency to our customers. 

Field Safe’s core platform is to develop Easy-To-Use Solutions.  By keeping the solution easy to use for the user this helps to increase the 
amount of compliance, and the amount of data for improved HSE programs.  The solution was developed “By the Field, For the Field” 
which means we work with the fieldworker on every assignment to make their job easier and more efficient.  The end results in increased 
and more reliable information which helps drive corporate efficiency and better decision making. 

Field Safe is a Software as a Service (“SaaS”) Company which focuses on monthly recurring revenues (“MRR”) through a subscription-based 
model.  The Company does have one-time fees on most new installations, but generally does business on 3-year contracts with monthly 
revenues that comprise the majority of the revenue.   

Capability 

Field Safe increased MRR by 346% in 2019, from MRR of $35,000 to $156,000 by year end.  The product meets a market need for 
increased ease-of-use for field data capture for health and safety solutions for field workers.  The MRR growth in 2019 is  through significant 
customer acquisition, continued development of the product and maturing channel partnerships.  The Company is in a strong market 
position having strong management capability, a strong board of directors and recognizable industry partners. 

Management is developing new health, safety and environmental solutions which is a long-term process and recognizes that the Company 
must generate positive cash flows.  The Company significantly increased revenues year over year but reports an operating loss at December 
31, 2019 of $1.3 million, with the continued goal of operating cashflow neutral in 2020 and onwards. In February of 2020, Field Safe 
closed an additional $3.5 million financing which it believes provides a solid foundation for future growth and the working capital to 
maintain active operations for the foreseeable future.  

  



|      |15

FIELD SAFE SOLUTIONS 

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 

2019 Highlights 

2019 was a transformative year for Field Safe with 408% revenue growth, and signing some key Fortune 500 customers.  Since 2014, the 
product has undergone development and has attained a strong competitive position in the market.  However, in 2019 Field Safe built the 
business to support its product including the build out of a complete management team. 

The Team 

• Cam Barrett, CEO.  Cam brings over  20 years of selling software and a history as a senior officer focused on increasing sales  in  

both  large and small businesses such as SAP, Axia, Computer Sciences Corp., and others. 

• Danny Hay, CFO. Danny is an experienced CFO as an officer and director of TSX and TSX-v listed companies. Most recently he 

was the CFO of an alternative energy company which sold at a 160% premium to the market price on the TSX. 

• Paul Aberle, CTO. Paul is a founder of the company and has been developing the core platform for five years.  Paul has over 20 

years of development experience and leading teams.  

• Ron Visser, Health and Safety Subject Matter Expert. Ron is a recognized expert in the Health and Safety market which includes 

his roles as an expert advisor on the IBM Innovation panel and previous roles on the Boards of several Health and Safety advisory 

groups. 

 

During 2019, Field Safe added key members to management and the Board of Directors, 
including: 

• David Eastham as Director and Audit Committee Chairman. David has over 30 years of  experience in the oil and gas sector 

and is an experienced CEO and Chairman of public and private companies. 

• Greg Clarke as Vice President of Sales. Greg has over 15 years of experience in sales, previously working for various multi-

national companies where he managed key enterprise customer  relations with some of the world’s most 

respected brands. 

• Colleen Mathews as Vice President of Customer Success. Colleen has over 30 years of experience in ensuring successful 

deployment of technology in both large and small enterprises. 

• Brad Barber as Director of Sales. Brad has over 10 years of sales experience, most recently working with various 

telecommunications companies in North America where he managed key executive relationships. Brad is working towards his MBA 

at the Edinburgh Business School.  

• Santosh Vadivelu as Director of Delivery and Customer Success. Santosh has driven growth in disruptive tech startups with an 

international footprint that includes North America, Australia, Europe and South America. 

 

Commercial Success 

• In April, a large grain producer in Manitoba and Saskatchewan increased its usage to approximately $2,000 MRR by adding additional 

grain elevators for Lone Worker Monitoring. 

• In April, a leading cement company in Western Canada completed a full system implementation including Lone Worker Monitoring, 

Journey Management and digitization of its Health, Safety and Environmental program for $5,000 MRR. 

• In May, a mid-sized E&P producer in Calgary switched its lone worker monitoring systems from a competitor to Field Safe for MRR of 

approximately $2,500. 
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• In May, a large drilling and well servicing company with operations throughout North America and the Middle East implemented a 

full implementation of the system for $3,500 MRR. This contract included some unique innovation related to monitoring of activities 

and workflow which is proving to be beneficial to multiple customers. 

• The signing of the large Enterprise deal in November has allowed Field Safe to have minimal to no operating cash burn. This positions 

Field Safe as a fast growth company with strong upside potential, while having a strong balance sheet. 

• In July, a multi-billion dollar waste management company signed a contract for Field Safe to provide configured workflow and 

digitization of their billing systems with field operational data for $5,000 MRR. 

• In September, one of the major E&P producers in Calgary added Journey Management into its company-wide App Store. Initially, this 

is for a limited subset of users for $1,500 MRR with the potential for increased growth as utilization increases. 

• In October, Field Safe signed a strategic partnership agreement with TELUS, a Fortune 500 Company, to jointly market combined 

services. 

• In November, Field Safe signed its first Enterprise client, a Fortune 200 EPC company building Canada’s largest energy project. This 

contract has a 3 year term and more than doubles the MRR of the Company. 

• Field Safe has on-boarded approximately 10,000 users in 2019 and expanded its presence in multiple verticals including agricultural, 

field services, E&P producers, waste management, EPC Companies, trucking and others. Field Safe continues to lead the market for 

digitization that can be configured to meet specific customer needs. Our core advantage of being the easiest to use product in the 

marketplace for the field user continues to resonate with current and new customers alike. 

Strategic Partnerships 

Field Safe has partnered with industry leaders including IBM, TELUS, and STARS© Emergency Link to help clients exceed their safety goals, 
create operational efficiencies, and lower costs. We do this by resolving the field data gap, digitally relaying information in real-time from 
remote locations back to head office.  

• IBM. IBM is a global technology company that provides hardware, software, cloud-based services and cognitive computing. As 
trailblazers in data and analytics, IBM is leading the digital transformation of the field. IBM’s Watson AI Innovation Programs create 
value for clients including production increases, cost savings, risk identification and incident prevention. Field Safe’s ability to capture 
field data real-time complements IBM’s core data analysis solutions, enhancing the powerful analytics IBM is famous for. 
 
Together, IBM and Field Safe help clients embrace “disruptive” digital technologies to reshape and re-invent traditional business 
processes and create a digital strategy that positions them as leaders in their respective industries. 
 

• TELUS. TELUS delivers state-of-the-art technology that powers innovation. By connecting devices across all ecosystems and facilitating 
the exchange of data across the “Internet of Things”, TELUS creates solutions that enhance an organization’s efficiency and  new 
revenue streams. Field Safe uses TELUS data programs to deliver our joint clients (including the global EPC company mentioned earlier 
in this document) a more complete offering. Together, TELUS and Field Safe facilitate the real-time transmission of data from the most 
remote and extreme environments, creating instant communication between the field and head office. 

 
• STARS© Emergency Link. The STARS Emergency Link Centre (ELC) was established in 1996 to meet the needs of businesses with 

employees working in remote locations including oil and gas, forestry, mining, recreation, and movie production. Field Safe customers 
gain extra peace of mind knowing that in emergency situations, STARS ELC is notified in real-time and able to provide emergency 
assistance to save lives. 
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INCOME STATEMENT AND CASH FLOW 

(Canadian dollars)  2019  2018 

Total revenues $ 1,011,937 $ 199,018 

Cost of sales  (147,027)  (8,035) 

General, administration, selling and distribution expenses  (1,864,313)  (869,500) 

Share-based payments  (139,133)  (111,808) 

Depreciation and amortization  (153,815)  (76,906) 

Bad debts expense  (4,081)  (12,463) 

Loss before tax and total loss  (1,269,432)  (879,694) 

Loss per share – basic and diluted  (0.25)  (0.19) 

Cash (used in) provided by operations $ (1,002,222) $ (495,465) 

 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

As at December 31  2019  2018 

Total assets $ 1,298,611  $  319,079 

Total liabilities  855,616  199,012 

Shareholders’ equity $ 442,995  $  120,067 

 

OVERALL PERFORMANCE 

Revenues 

For the year ended December 31, 2019, total revenues of $1,011,937 were $812,919 or 408% higher than the year ended December 
31, 2019.  The significant increase in revenues is due to the strong market need for the product, our revenue growth as outlined on page 
14 and performance of the expanded management team. We expect that we will continue to sign major customers and expand current 
customers in 2020. In 2019, the majority of revenues was recurring revenue on long-term contracts. 

Gross margins were 85% for the year ended December 31, 2019 compared to 96% for 2018. The gross margins are high for both periods 
as sales are generally derived from monthly recurring revenues with limited ongoing costs.  Routine client inquiries by support staff are 
recorded in general and administrative expense with large installations being recorded as cost of sales.  

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 

The total selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2019 were $1,864,313, which is a 114% increase 
over 2018 costs of $869,500.  During 2019, the Company expanded its management team, hired key employees, and built in new product 
features to maintain itself as a meaningful participant in the digital health, safety, and environmental market. 

For the years ended December 31  2019  2018 

Employee costs, net of recoveries  $  1,278,883  $  617,965 

Office and operating costs  311,158  84,042 

Professional and consulting fees  169,065  53,104 

Travel costs  81,870  66,031 

Other costs  23,337  48,358 

Total  $  1,864,313  $  869,500 

 



|      |18

FIELD SAFE SOLUTIONS 

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 

Employee costs increased by $660,918 for the year ended December 31, 2019 which is attributable to the management team including a 
COO, VP of delivery, VP of sales and a Director of Customer relations. During this period more developers were also added to ensure 
customer demand could be met. 

For the year ended December 31, 2019, office and operating costs increased by $227,116. The expenses in 2019 are higher and reflect 
more consistent levels as the Company opened a professional office space in downtown Calgary which was open the entire year in 2019. 

Professional and consulting fees for the year ended December 31, 2019 is $115,961 higher than 2018 as a result of additional efforts in 
expanding the business, hiring employees and expanding our platform.  

Travel costs for the year ended December 31, 2019 increased by $15,839. The increased costs were a result of the increased sales 
personnel and sales focus to generate additional revenues.  

Other costs include conference fees, sponsorship, and other dues and subscriptions. 

Share Based Payments  

Total share-based payments for year ended December 31, 2019 were $139,133 which is an increase from $111,808 the prior year due 
to the initial grant of stock-based compensation awarded to key personnel, Board members and advisors.  The stock option program was 
established in June of 2018 to incent key stakeholders and align their interests with shareholders. 

Depreciation and Amortization 

For the years ended December 31  2019  2018 

Depreciation $ 6,456 $ 2,073 

Amortization  147,359  74,833 

Total $ 153,815 $ 76,906 

 

Amortization for the year ended December 31, 2019, increased by $76,909 compared to the same period in 2018 due to the increased 
spending around the development of the Field Safe product to improve marketability,  usability through new design features as well as the 
implementation of IFRS 16. 

Income Taxes 

For the years ended December 31  2019  2018 

Deferred income tax asset $ 0 $ 0  

Deferred income tax recovery $ 0               $ 0  

 

The Company has unused deductions of $2,547,289 for tax purposes, primarily non-capital losses, for which a deferred income tax benefit 
is not recorded due to lack of certainty regarding the realization of this benefit.  The Company will record the benefit of the tax assets once 
the Company achieves positive cash flow from operations. 

Loss from Operations 

The Company continues to incur losses as it continues to build revenue and execute on its strategic plan.  The accumulated deficit at 
December 31, 2019 was $2,521,291. For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company recorded revenues of approximately 
$1,011,937 as compared to approximately $199,018 for of the 2018 year.  The loss for the year ended December 31, 2019 was 
$1,296,432 as compared to $879,694 for the same period of 2018. Even though the business earns positive margins, the total revenue 
and gross profits are not enough to cover the costs of overhead for administration, selling and distribution at this time.  The Company 
continues to focus on increasing revenues by leveraging its strong growth in the market and reputable customer base. 
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Liquidity and Capital Resources 

The Company’s working capital balance is approximately $60,510 at December 31, 2019, an increase from the balance at December 31, 
2018 of $13,429.  The working capital in 2018 included shareholder loans with no specified terms of repayment, however, the majority of 
which was converted to common shares in 2019.  Working capital provides funds for the Company to meet its operational and capital 
requirements.  In January to March 2020, the Company raised an additional $3.5 million in equity which provides additional financial 
strength. 

Management believes that increases in revenues will provide the necessary capital to fund operations as the contracts are multi-year and 
based on monthly recurring revenues. Delays in revenues, diminished project profit margins or higher than expected expenses could result 
in the need to raise additional working capital.   

Capital Expenditures 

For the years ended December 31  2019  2018 

Property and equipment $ 26,299 $ 0 

Intangible assets  374,141  133,950 

Total capital expenditures  $  400,440  $  133,950 

 

Intangible asset expenditures consist of internal project development work on the Company’s development team and reflect the technology 
modifications that the Company engaged in to increase the marketability of the technology.  During 2019, the majority of the intangible 
assets related to specific functionality that added marketability to the core safety platform. 

Equity 

The authorized share capital of the Company consists of an unlimited number of common shares.  

As at December 31, 2019, the Company had 5,532,555 common shares issued and outstanding and 548,000 stock options issued and 
outstanding, of which 312,333 were vested. 

On March 7, 2019, the Company granted to certain directors, officers and employees 70,000 stock options at an exercise price of $1.50 
per share, which are exercisable for a period of ten years. 

On May 7, 2019, the Company granted to certain directors, officers and employees 95,000 stock options at an exercise price of $1.50 per 
share, which are exercisable for a period of ten years.  

On June 19, 2019, the Company granted a director, 15,000 stock options at an exercise price of $1.50 per share, which are exercisable 
for a period of ten years.  

Outlook 

During 2020, the Company expects its software technology will contribute directly to increased revenues. Further increase in customers 
could make the Company cash flow positive and the Company is actively supporting near-term opportunities.  Management is committed 
to focusing on capitalizing on revenue generating opportunities and focusing on the short-term goals that deliver short-term cash flow. 

Cash used in continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2019 of $(962,290) compared to $(495,465) for the same period 
of 2018.  The operational cash burn (excluding working capital changes) has increased during the period with a burn of $(1,002,222) in 
2019 and $(690,980) in 2018.  Cash provided by operations is expected to improve as the Company secures software technology sales 
contracts, recurring revenue and reduces costs.  The timing of these cash flows is a function of sales timing, type and margin and can be 
affected by various operating issues as outlined further in the “Business Conditions and Risks” section. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements. 
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Financial Instruments 

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities.  Due 
to the short-term nature of these financial assets and liabilities, the carrying values equal the fair values.  The Company, however, remains 
exposed to various risks associated with financial instruments including credit risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.  
The Company did not hold or issue any derivative financial instruments during the year ended December 31, 2019 or 2018. 

Critical Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of the Company’s audited financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date 
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses for the periods presented.  Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluated and 
are based on management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstances.  Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.  

Anticipating future events involves uncertainty and consequently, the estimates used by management in the preparation of the audited 
consolidated financial statements may change as future events unfold, additional experience is acquired or the Company’s operating 
environment changes.  The key sources of estimation uncertainty for the year ended December 31, 2019 are consistent with those disclosed 
audited financial statements and are as follows:  

Assessment of Impairments 

The Company’s impairment tests for intangible assets are based on value-in-use calculations that use a discounted cash flow model.  The 
value-in-use calculations employ the following key assumptions: future cash flows, growth projections, including economic risk assumptions 
and estimates of achieving key operating metrics.  Management uses its best estimate to determine which key assumptions to use in the 
analysis. The cash flows are derived from the Company’s budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the 
Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset base of the CGU being tested.  The recoverable 
amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model, as well as the expected future cash inflows and the 
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. 

The Company measures the assets held for sale at the lower of its carrying value and fair value less costs to sell.  Recognition of impairment 
losses or gains are measured as the fair value less costs to sell to the extent they have not already been recognized or are in excess of the 
initial impairment. 

Share-based Payments 

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the 
date at which they are granted.  Estimating fair value for share-based payments requires determining the most appropriate valuation model 
for a grant of equity instruments, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant.  This also requires determining the most 
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions 
about them.  The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payments are disclosed in Note 12. 

Deferred Tax Assets 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will available against which 
the losses can be utilized.  Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be 
recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

Business Conditions and Risks 

The business of Field Safe is subject to certain risks and uncertainties. Prior to making any investment decision regarding Field Safe investors 
should carefully consider, among other things, the risks described herein including the risks and uncertainties listed in the Forward-Looking 
Statements section below. 
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Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting 

The Company has established disclosure controls and procedures to ensure the timely and accurate preparation of financial and other 
reports.  Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that material information required to be 
disclosed is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by securities regulations and that information 
required to be disclosed is accumulated and communicated to the appropriate members of management and properly reflected in the 
Company’s filings.  The Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) oversaw the evaluation and implementation 
process and have concluded that the design and operation of disclosure controls and procedures are adequate and effective in ensuring 
that the information required to be disclosed under applicable securities laws is accurate and complete and filed within the time periods 
required. 

The Company’s CEO and CFO evaluated the design and implementation of internal controls over financial reporting and have concluded 
that these controls are effective in providing reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

It should be noted that the Company’s CEO and CFO recognize that all internal controls systems, no matter how well designed, have 
inherent limitations and therefore have concluded that these systems provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance, that the financial 
information is accurate and complete in all material respects.  Any control system, no matter how well conceived or operated, can provide 
only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. 

During the year ended December 31, 2019 the Company did not make any significant changes to its internal controls over financial 
reporting that would have materially affected, or would likely materially affect, the effectiveness of such controls. 

The MD&A and Financial Statements are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors which is charged with oversight of 
financial reporting, disclosure, and regulatory filing compliance.  Once approved by the Audit Committee, the MD&A and Financial 
Statements are presented to and approved by the Board of Directors. 

Forward-looking Statements 

Certain statements in this MD&A are “forward-looking statements”.  In particular, this MD&A contains forward-looking statements pertaining 
to capital expenditures, schedules and commencement of operations of existing projects and projects under development; availability of 
project financing; timing of sales; industry trends; factors influencing capital investments and development activities; the Company’s 
reputation and market position within the industries in which it operates and the Company’s strategy and competitive advantages. 

Forward-looking statements require management to make estimates and assumptions with respect to the outcome of future events.  These 
estimates and assumptions could, in the future, turn out to be inaccurate and materially affect the final outcome.  The significant estimates 
and assumptions within the Company’s forward-looking statements include: 

• availability and cost of key materials and labour and availability of funds with respect to the amount of capital expenditures and 

scheduled commencement of operations 

• the assessment of capital markets including the availability of debt and equity in current market conditions; 

• commodity prices for electricity, natural gas, coal, and other resources that impact the Company’s operations directly and 

indirectly; 

• the financial and operational health of key partners in various projects; the continued development of the Company’s technology 

and its use in various applications; and 

• consumer demand for our solutions. 

Forward-looking statements are frequently characterized by words such as “plan”, “expect”, “project”, “propose”, “target”, “intend”, 
“believe”, “should”, “anticipate”, “estimate” or other similar words, or statements that certain events or conditions “may” or “will” occur.  
Forward-looking statements are not based on historical facts but rather on the expectations of management of the Company regarding, 
among other things, the Company’s future plans and intentions, results of operations, levels of activity, future capital and other expenditures 
(including the amount, nature and sources of funding thereof), competitive advantages, business prospects and opportunities. 
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Forward-looking statements reflect management’s current beliefs and assumptions, based on information currently available to 
management.  A number of factors could cause actual results to differ materially from the results discussed in the forward-looking 
statements, many of which are beyond the control of the Company.  Among the material factors that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from those indicated by such forward-looking statements are: 

• that the information is of a preliminary nature and may be subject to further adjustment; 

• the completion of agreements with strategic partners and reliance on key hardware partners; 

• potential product liability and other claims; 

• risks associated with the proprietary technology and technological change; 

• the possible unavailability of financing at competitive rates and the related effect on development activities; 

• the effect of energy price fluctuations; 

• changes in government regulation, including changes to environmental regulations; 

• the effects of competition; 

• history of operating losses and requirement for increased revenue or further capital raises to fund operations; 

• the dependence on senior management and key personnel; and 

• fluctuations in currency exchange rates and interest rates. 
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Management’s Report 
 

Management has the responsibility for preparing the accompanying financial statements, management’s discussion and analysis and the 
related annual report.  This responsibility includes selecting appropriate principles and making objective judgments and estimates in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and establishing appropriate internal controls over financial reporting. 

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements, management designs and maintains the necessary 
accounting systems and related internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized, assets are safeguarded, 
and proper records are maintained. 

The Company’s Board of Directors has approved the information contained in the financial statements, management’s discussion and 
analysis and the related annual report and has overseen the performance of management’s responsibilities.  The Audit Committee is 
appointed by the Board to review the financial statements, management’s discussion and analysis and the related annual report in detail 
with management and to report to the Board prior to its approval of these documents for publication.  The Audit Committee is composed 
of Directors, the majority of whom are neither management nor employees of the Company.  The Audit Committee meets with management 
and the external auditor to discuss the financial statements, management’s discussion and analysis, the annual report and internal controls 
over financial reporting.  In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for recommending the appointment of the external auditors. 

External auditors have full and free access to, and meet periodically and separately with, both management and the Audit Committee to 
discuss their audit findings. 

 

(Signed) “Cameron Barrett”   (Signed) “Daniel Hay” 

Chief Executive Officer    Chief Financial Officer 

May 20th, 2020 
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Independent Auditors’ Report  
  

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative ("KPMG International"), a Swiss entity.   
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP. 

KPMG LLP 
Bow Valley Square II 
3100, 205 5th Avenue SW 
Calgary Alberta T2P 4B9 
Canada 
Tel (403) 691-8000 
Fax (403) 691-8008 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of Field Safe Solutions Inc. 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Field Safe Solutions Inc. (the "Company"), which 
comprise: 

• the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2019;  

• the statements of comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31, 2019; 

• the statement of changes in equity for the year ended December 31, 2019; 

• the statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2019; 

• and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  
(hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”). 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2019 and its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the year ended December 31, 2019 in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”).  
 
Basis for Opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our auditors’ report.   
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.     
 
Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises 

• Information, other than the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon, included in 
the Annual Report document. 
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.   

We obtained the information, other than the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon, 
included in the Annual Report document as at the date of this auditors’ report.   If, based on the work 
we have performed on this other information, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact in the auditors’ report.  

We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company‘s financial reporting 
process.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report 
that includes our opinion.  
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists.  
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of the financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  
We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represents the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

• Provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
Calgary, Canada 

June 1, 2020 



|      |27

FIELD SAFE SOLUTIONS 
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Statement of Financial Position 

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

See subsequent events notes 1, 11, 12 and 18 

Approved by the Board of Directors:  

(Signed) “Michael Heier”     (Signed) “David Eastham” 
Director       Director  

    AAss  aatt 
(Canadian dollars) Note   DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001199   December 31, 2018 
AAsssseettss         
        
Current assets:        

   Cash  $$  221122,,992299  $  142,172 

Restricted cash  5   1100,,334499   10,000 
Accounts receivable  6   665500,,448800   52,980 
Prepaid expenses    88,,776655   7,289 

    888822,,552233   212,441 
Non-current assets:        
   Leasehold improvements 7   1100,,445588   - 

Computers and electronic equipment  7   1133,,772244   4,339 
Contract Assets 9   4477,,115511   - 
Intangible assets 8   334444,,775555   102,299 

TToottaall  aasssseettss   $$  11,,229988,,661111  $  319,079 
        
LLiiaabbiilliittiieess  aanndd  SShhaarreehhoollddeerrss’’  EEqquuiittyy         
        
Current liabilities:        

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $$  449922,,662288  $  169,012 
Shareholder loan payable    --   30,000 
Deferred revenue     331155,,664400   - 
Lease liability 9   1133,,774455   - 

    882222,,001133   199,012 
Non-current liabilities:        

Long term lease liability 9   3333,,660033   - 

Total liabilities    885555,,661166   199,012 
        
Shareholders’ equity:        

Share capital  11   22,,771133,,334455   1,233,118 
Contributed surplus    225500,,994411   111,808 
Deficit    ((22,,552211,,229911))   (1,224,859) 

Total shareholders’ equity    444422,,999955   120,067 

TToottaall  sshhaarreehhoollddeerrss’’  eeqquuiittyy  aanndd  lliiaabbiilliittiieess   $$  11,,229988,,661111  $  319,079 

Statement of Financial Position
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Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss 
 

  For the years ended December 31 

(Canadian dollars) Note   22001199   2018 

Sales  $$  11,,001111,,993377  $  199,018 

Cost of sales    ((114477,,002277))   (8,035) 

GGrroossss  pprrooffiitt     886644,,991100   190,983 
        

Selling, general and administrative expenses 14   ((11,,886644,,331133))   (869,500) 
Share-based compensation 12   ((113399,,113333))   (111,808) 
Depreciation and amortization 7, 8, 9   ((115533,,881155))   (76,906) 
Bad debts expense 6   ((44,,008811))   (12,463) 

Loss before income tax    ((11,,229966,,443322))   (879,694) 
Income tax recovery 10   00   0 

TToottaall  nneett  lloossss  aanndd  ccoommpprreehheennssiivvee  lloossss   $$  ((11,,229966,,443322))  $ (879,694) 

       

NNeett  LLoossss  ppeerr  SShhaarree         

BBaassiicc  aanndd  ddiilluutteedd  13 $$  ((00..2255))  $ (0.23) 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 

Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity 
 

(Canadian dollars)  
Share 

Capital  
Contributed 

Surplus  Deficit  Total 

As at January 1, 2018 $ 300,300 $ - $ (345,165) $ (44,865) 

Loss for the year  932,818  111,808  (879,694)  164,932 

As at December 31, 2018  $$ 11,,223333,,111188 $$ 111111,,880088 $$ ((11,,222244,,885599)) $$ 112200,,006677 

Net loss for the year  -  -  (1,296,432)  (1,296,432) 

Share based compensation   -  139,133  -  139,133 

Shares issued  1,529,271  -  -  1,529,271 

Share issue costs, net  (49,044)  -  -  (49,044) 

AAss  aatt  DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001199  $$  22,,771133,,334455  $$  225500,,994411  $$  ((22,,552211,,229911))  $$  444422,,999955  
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

 

  

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
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Statement of Cash Flows 
 

  For the years ended December 31 

(Canadian dollars) Note   22001199   2018 
CCaasshh  pprroovviiddeedd  bbyy  ((uusseedd  iinn))::         
OOppeerraattiinngg::         
Net loss before taxes  $$    ((11,,229966,,443322))  $  (879,694) 
Add (deduct) items not involving cash:        
Share-based compensation  12   113399,,113333   111,808 
Depreciation and amortization 7,8,9   115533,,881155   76,906 
Accretion of leases 9   11,,226622   - 

    ((11,,000022,,222222))   (690,980) 
Change in non-cash working capital 4   3399,,993322   195,515 

Cash (used in) provided by operations        ((996622,,229900))     (495,465) 

FFiinnaanncciinngg::         
Proceeds from issuance of share capital  11 $$  11,,552299,,227711  $ 776,470 
Share issue costs, net  11   ((4499,,004444))   (7,652) 
Payments on lease obligation 9   ((1166,,774400))   - 
Shareholder loan    ((3300,,000000))   - 

Cash provided by financing activities  $$  11,,443333,,448877  $ 768,818 

IInnvveessttiinngg::         
Development costs 8   ((337744,,114411))   (133,950) 
Purchase of equipment 7   ((2266,,229999))   - 

Cash used in investing activities  $$  ((440000,,444400))  $ (133,950) 
Net change in cash  $$  7700,,775577  $ 139,403 
Cash, beginning of year    114422,,117722   2,769 

Cash, end of year  $$  221122,,992299  $ 142,172 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows
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AS AT, AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

Note 1 Corporate Information 

Field Safe Solutions Inc. (“Field Safe” or the “Company”) was incorporated on March 20, 2014 in the Province of Alberta, Canada.  The 
Company is domiciled at 1350, 707 7th Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2P 3H6. 

The Company markets and sells a health and safety platform that focuses on field data capture that is easy to use and to which workflow 
can be customized for the end customer. 

These financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2019 were approved and authorized for issuance by the 
Board of Directors of Field Safe on May 20th, 2020. 

Note 2 Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements (“financial statements”) are presented in Canadian dollars, the functional currency of the Company. The financial 
statements have been prepared using historical costs, except for financial instruments carried at fair value.  

Statement of Compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared by management, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) 
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.  The significant accounting policies set out below were applied consistently in 
all periods presented. 

New Accounting Policies Applied 

IFRS 16 Leases 

IFRS 16 Leases (“IFRS 16”) was issued in January 2016.  It will result in almost all leases being recognized on the statement of financial 
position, as the distinction between operating and finance leases is removed.  Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased 
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognized. The only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.  

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Company’s operating leases.  As at the reporting date, the Company has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments.  The Company has used a modified retrospective approach to accommodate IFRS 16 as follows 

     JJaannuuaarryy  11,,  22001199   December 31, 2018 

AAsssseettss         
Contract assets  $$  1199,,559933   - 

LLiiaabbiilliittiieess         
Lease liability  $$  1199,,559933   - 
        

 

The new standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after January 1, 2019 and the company has adopted the new 
standards. 

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current or 
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions. 

 

  

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Future changes in accounting policies 

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for December 31, 2019 reporting 
periods and have not been early adopted by the Company.  The Company’s assessment of the impact of these new standards and 
interpretations is set out below. 

IFRS 3 Business Combinations 

The accounting for acquisitions will not significantly change.  

The International Accounting Standards Board amended IFRS 3, Business Combinations, seeking to clarify whether an acquisition 
transaction results in the acquisition of an asset or the acquisition of a business. The amendments are effective for acquisition transactions 
on or after January 1, 2020, although earlier application is permitted. The amended standard has a narrower definition of a business, 
which could result in the recognition of fewer business combinations than under the current standard; the implication of this is that amounts 
which may have been recognized as goodwill in a business combination under the current standard may now be recognized as allocations 
to net identifiable assets acquired under the amended standard (with an associated effect in an entity’s results of operations that would 
differ from the effect of goodwill having been recognized). The effects, if any, of the amended standard on our financial performance and 
disclosure will be dependent on the facts and circumstances of any future acquisition transactions. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, JUDGMENTS 

Foreign currency translation 

The financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency and the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates.  Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the spot rate prevailing 
at the date of the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency 
spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.  All differences are recorded in the consolidated statement of net loss and comprehensive 
loss. 

Revenue recognition 

The Company adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers effective January 1, 2018. IFRS 15 establishes a single 
comprehensive model to address how and when to recognize revenue as well as requiring entities to provide users of the financial statements 
with more informative, relevant disclosures in order to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows 
arising from contracts with customers. The application of IFRS 15 has not had any significant impact on the recognition of revenue upon 
adoption at January 1st, 2018. 

Revenue is recognized when evidence of an arrangement exists, services are rendered, the selling price is fixed and determinable and 
collectability is reasonably assured. 

Advance payments received from customers for initial set up, in excess of revenue recognized, are classified as deferred revenue until the 
service is provided or the product is delivered. 

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues (using the effective interest method).  Interest income is included in financing income on 
the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss. 

TAXES 

Current income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxation authorities.  The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amounts are those that are enacted or substantively enacted 
by the reporting period date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive loss. 
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Deferred income tax 

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax basis of assets 
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where a deferred income tax liability arises from 
the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in 
subsidiaries and associates, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the 
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward or unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except: 

• where a deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arise from the initial recognition of an asset or 
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor 
taxable profit or loss; and 

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred income tax 
assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and 
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying value of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred 
income tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable 
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is expected to 
be realised or the liability settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive loss. 

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Share-based payment transactions 

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company may receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, 
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).   

Equity-settled transactions 

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for awards granted is measured by reference to the fair value at the date on which 
they were granted.  The fair value is determined by using the Black Scholes pricing model, further details of which are given in Note 12. 

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in shareholders’ equity, over the period in 
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to 
the award (“the vesting date”).  The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date is based on the 
Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. 

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the expense as if the terms had not been 
modified.  An additional expense is recognized for any modification which increases the total fair value of the share-based payment 
arrangement or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. 
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Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognized 
for the award is recognized immediately.  This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Company 
or the counterparty are not met.  However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award and designated as a replacement award 
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described 
in the previous paragraph. 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Company recognizes financial assets when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are 
measured initially at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition. Transaction costs attributable to the acquisition of financial assets 
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss when incurred. 

Pursuant to IFRS 9, the classification of financial assets is based on the Company’s assessment of its business model for holding financial 
assets. The classification categories are as follows: 

• Financial assets measured at amortized cost: assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to 
collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

• Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income: assets that are held within a business model whose objective 
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and its contractual terms give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through 
other comprehensive income. 

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are measured at cost using the effective interest method. Impairment of financial assets are 
recognized in accordance with IFRS 9’s three stage process and credit losses expected to occur over the first 12 months of the life of the 
instrument are recognized immediately. The lifetime credit losses are recognized when the credit risk has increased significantly since the 
initial recognition. Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amounts of the 
assets and the loss is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss. When a trade receivable is 
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. The standard introduces additional changes relating to financial 
liabilities. 

It also amends the impairment model by introducing a new ‘expected credit loss’ model for calculating impairment. 

IFRS 9 (2014) also includes a new general hedge accounting standard which aligns hedge accounting more closely with risk management. 
This new standard does not fundamentally change the types of hedging relationships or the requirement to measure and recognize 
ineffectiveness, however it will provide more hedging strategies that are used for risk management to qualify for hedge accounting and 
introduce more judgment to assess the effectiveness of a hedging relationship. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if, and 
only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to 
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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Impairment of financial assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting period date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is impaired.  A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event‘) and that 
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably 
estimated.   Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial 
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganization and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes 
in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. 

Derecognition of Financial Instruments 

Financial assets 

• A financial asset (or, where applicable part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when 
the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 

• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash 
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

Financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.   

Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses and residual 
values, if any.  Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment.  Likewise, when a major inspection is 
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying value of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are 
satisfied as stated by IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment.  All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive loss as incurred.  The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is 
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset as follows: 

Office equipment   5 years 

Computer equipment  5 years 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal.  Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying value of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss in the period the asset is derecognized. 

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively if 
appropriate. 

Leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date; 
whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the 
asset. 
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Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are 
capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease 
payments.  Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance charges are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss. 

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset.  However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain 
ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimate useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

Operating lease payments are recognized using the updated IFRS 16 model which recognizes them as an asset and depreciated over the 
term of the lease. 

Management has examined the lease agreements and has determined that there is no evidence of embedded derivatives. 

Cash and restricted cash equivalents 

Cash and restricted cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less.  Cash held 
as collateral for a letter of credit and to securitize credit cards is treated as restricted cash. 

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.  The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business 
combination is fair value as at the date of acquisition.  Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.  Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are 
not capitalized and the expenditure is reflected in the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss in the period in which the expenditure 
is incurred. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication 
that the intangible asset may be impaired.  The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful 
life is reviewed at least at each financial year end.  Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated 
as changes in accounting estimates.  Amortization expense on the intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying value of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss when the asset is derecognized. 

Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset as follows: 

Acquired intangible assets   3 to 10 years 

Developed intangible assets  5 years 

Research and development costs 

Research costs are expensed as incurred.   

Development expenditure on an individual project is recognized as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate: 

• the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale; 

• its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset; 

• how the asset will generate future economic benefits; 

• the availability of resources to complete the asset; and 

• the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development. 
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Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the asset to be carried at cost 
less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.  Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete, 
and the asset is available for use.  It is amortized over the period of expected future benefit. The asset is tested for impairment annually if 
indicators of impairment exist. 

Patents 

The Company’s patents have been granted for a specific period by the relevant government agency.  All patents are considered to have a 
finite life and are amortized over the period the patent was provided on a straight-line basis. 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset or CGU may be impaired.  If an indication exists, 
or when annual impairment testing for an asset or CGU is required, the Company estimates the recoverable amount.  The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset or the 
CGU when the individual asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.  
Where the carrying value of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or CGU is considered to be impaired and is written 
down to its recoverable amount.  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU, using 
an appropriate valuation model.  These calculations are corroborated by calculation multiples or other available fair value indicators. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the consolidated statement of loss and comprehensive loss in those expense 
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset. 

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized 
impairment losses may no longer exist or may be reversed.  If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s 
recoverable amount.  A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to 
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.  The reversal is limited so that the carrying value 
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor does it exceed the carrying value that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized.  Impairment reversals are recognized in the consolidated statements 
of comprehensive loss. 

The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of specific assets: 

• Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually as at December 31, either individually or at the 
CGU, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. 

Loss per share 

Loss per share is calculated using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.  Diluted per share amounts are 
calculated using the treasury stock method, which assumes that any proceeds from the exercise of share options would be used to purchase 
shares at the average market price during the period, unless the effect would be anti-dilutive. 

Note 3 Significant Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions  

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements, in accordance with IFRS, requires management to make certain judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses for the periods presented.  Estimates and 
judgments are continuously evaluated and based on management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future events 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying value of the assets or liabilities in future periods. 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the key sources of estimation uncertainty at December 31, 2019, that have a significant 
risk of causing adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities. 
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Assessment of impairments 

The Company’s impairment tests for intangible assets are based on value-in-use calculations that use a discounted cash flow model.  The 
value-in-use calculations employ the following key assumptions: future cash flows, growth projections, including economic risk assumptions 
and estimates of achieving key operating metrics.  Management uses its best estimate to determine which key assumptions to use in the 
analysis.  The cash flows are derived from the Company’s budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the 
Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset base of the CGU being tested.  The recoverable 
amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model, as well as the expected future cash inflows and the 
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. 

The Company measures the assets held for sale at the lower of its carrying value and fair value less costs to sell.  Recognition of impairment 
losses or gains are measured as the fair value less costs to sell to the extent they have not already been recognized or in excess of the initial 
impairment.   

Share-based payments 

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the 
date at which they are granted.  Estimating fair value for share-based payments requires determining the most appropriate valuation model 
for a grant of equity instruments, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant.  This also requires determining the most 
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions 
about them.  The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payments are disclosed in Note 12. 

Deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will available against which 
the losses can be utilized.  Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be 
recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 

Revenue recognition 

Revenue from long-term service contracts is recognized using the percentage-of-completion method of accounting. The degree of 
completion is determined by comparing the costs incurred to the total costs anticipated for the contract.  Where the contract outcome cannot 
be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered. 

Fair value of financial instruments 

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be derived from active 
markets, they are determined using valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models. 

Note 4 Changes in Non-cash Working Capital 

As at December 31    22001199   2018 
Change in accounts receivable  $$  ((559977,,550000))   $  (44,345) 
Change in restricted cash    ((334499))   0 
Change in prepaid expenses    ((11,,447766))   (7,289) 
Change in deferred revenue    331155,,664400   0 
Change in accounts payable and accrued liabilities    332233,,661177   160,149 

   $$  3399,,993322   $  195,515 
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Note 5 Restricted Cash 

As at December 31    22001199   2018 
GIC  $$  1100,,334499  $ 10,000 

 

At December 31, 2019, the Company held this restricted cash in short term investments including $10,349 (December 31, 2018 - $10,000) 
in guaranteed investment certificates.  The term deposits and guaranteed investment certificates earn interest at rates of 1% to 2% (December 
2018 - 1% to 2%). Restricted cash could be released within the next twelve months; accordingly, all restricted cash has been classified as a 
current asset. This restricted cash covers the limit on the Company’s credit card. 

Note 6 Accounts Receivable 

As at December 31                                  22001199                  2018 
Trade receivables  $$  663355,,115588   $  52,980 
Tax receivable    1155,,332222   - 

TToottaall  aaccccoouunnttss  rreecceeiivvaabbllee   $$  665500,,448800   $  52,980 
 

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company wrote-off $4,081 of bad debts (2018- $12,463). 

Note 7 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Computers and electronics   Total 

CCoosstt,,  ccoommppuutteerrss  aanndd  eelleeccttrroonniiccss     

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001188      $$    1122,,663311  
Additions   13,749 

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001199    $$  2266,,338800  
  
  
AAccccuummuullaatteedd  ddeepprreecciiaattiioonn  

   

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001188      $$    ((88,,229944))  
Charge for the year   (4,364) 

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001199    $$  ((1122,,665577))  

  
  
NNeett  bbooookk  vvaalluuee  

   

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001199    $$  1133,,772244  

December 31, 2018   $ 4,339 
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Leasehold Improvements   Total 

CCoosstt,,  lleeaasseehhoolldd  iimmpprroovveemmeennttss     

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001188      $$    --  
Additions   12,550 

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001199    $$  1122,,555500  

  
AAccccuummuullaatteedd  ddeepprreecciiaattiioonn       

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001188      $$    --  
Charge for the year   (2,092) 

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001199    $$  ((22,,009922))  

  
  
NNeett  bbooookk  vvaalluuee  

   

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001199    $$  1100,,445588  

December 31, 2018   $ - 

 

Note 8 Intangible Assets 

   
Development 

Costs  Patents   Total 

CCoosstt         

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001188    $$  330033,,008800  $$  --  $$  330033,,008800  

Additions   366,205  7,936  374,141 

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001199    $$  666699,,228855  $$  77,,993366  $$  667777,,222211  

        

AAccccuummuullaatteedd  aammoorrttiizzaattiioonn         

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001188    $$  ((220000,,778811))  $$  --  $$  ((220000,,778811))  

Charge for the year   (130,891)  (794)  (131,685) 

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001199    $$  ((333311,,667722))  $$  ((779944))  $$  ((333322,,446666))  
        

NNeett  bbooookk  vvaalluuee         

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001199    $$  333377,,661133  $$  77,,114422  $$  334444,,775555  

December 31, 2018  $ 102,299 $ - $ 102,299 
 

Management’s assessment determined that there was no indication that intangible assets were impaired as at December 31, 2019. 
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Note 9 Contract Assets and Lease Liability 

The following tables are a summary of the Company’s lease liabilities associated with its Calgary head office. Prior the adoption of IFRS 16 
Leases on January 1, 2019 these leases would have been treated as operating leases whereby the lease payments were included in 
operating expenses expenses. 

 

CCoosstt,,  LLeeaassee    22001199  

JJaannuuaarryy  11,,  22001199      $$    1199,,559933  
Additions     43,233  
Depreciation     ((1155,,667755))  

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001199    $$  4477,,115511  

        
 

LLeeaassee  LLiiaabbiilliittyy      22001199  

JJaannuuaarryy11  ,,  22001199      $$    1199,,559933  
Interest       1,262  
Lease payments     ((1166,,774400)) 
Additions     4433,,223333  

DDeecceemmbbeerr  3311,,  22001199   $$  4477,,334488  

Current lease liability  $ 13,745 
Non-current lease liability  $ 33,603 

 

 

The additions represent a three year lease started April 1st, 2020 with a right of use valued at $43,233 for our head office lease. 

Note 10 Income Taxes 

The provision for income taxes in the financial statements differs from the result that would be obtained applying the federal and provincial 
tax rates to the Company’s loss before income taxes. The difference results from the following items: 

For the years ended December 31   22001199   2018 

Loss before income taxes for continuing operations $$  ((11,,229966,,443322))  $ (879,694) 

Combined federal and provincial tax rate   2277%%   27% 

Computed “expected” income tax recovery $$  ((334433,,555544))  $ (237,517) 

Effect of the small business rate difference  221111,,777777   133,577 
Non-deductible expenses  2200,,558866   15,496 
Change in valuation allowance   111111,,119911   88,443 

Income tax recovery $$  00  $ 0 
 

As the acquired intangible assets are amortized, there is a corresponding reduction in the deferred tax liability relating to these intangible 
assets which included the amount disclosed as current income tax recovery.  The Company has not recorded deferred tax assets as their 
realization is less than probable due to the Company’s continued operating losses. 
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The Company has accumulated non-capital losses for income tax purposes related to its continuing operations that expire as follows: 

Accumulated non-capital losses       

Expiring in  2025   $ 7,463 
  2026    191,895 
  2027    172,740 
  2028    810,417 
  2029    1,364,774 

TToottaall      $ 2,547,289 
 

Note 11 Shareholders’ Capital 

Authorized 

At December 31, 2019, there is an unlimited number of authorized common shares, voting and participating. 

Class A 

For the years ended December 31   22001199   2018 

Issued and fully paid 
  NNuummbbeerr  

IIssssuueedd    AAmmoouunntt   
Number 

Issued  Amount 

Shareholders' capital, beginning of year   44,,660077,,113366  $$  11,,223333,,111188   3,300,000 $ 300 

Private placement of shares at $1.50   883311,,445533  $$  11,,224477,,337733   776,470 $ 776,470 

Private placement of shares at $3.00   9933,,996666  $$  228811,,889988      

Conversion of shareholder loan          164,000  164,000 

Converted from Class B     $$     366,666 $ 300,000 

Share Issuance Cost       ((4499,,004444))     (7,652) 

CCoommmmoonn  sshhaarreess  iissssuueedd  aanndd  ffuullllyy  ppaaiidd,,  eenndd  ooff  yyeeaarr    55,,553322,,555555  $$  22,,771133,,334455   4,607,136 $ 1,233,118 

TToottaall  sshhaarreess  iissssuueedd  aanndd  ffuullllyy  ppaaiidd      $$  22,,771133,,334455    $ 1,233,118 
 

In the first quarter of 2020, the Company Issued a $3.5 million financing in order to fund expansion of operations. 

Note 12 Share-based Payments  

For the years ended December 31   22001199   2018 

Expenses arising from equity-settled share-based 
payment transactions $$  113399,,113333  $ 111,808 

Stock-option plan 

The Company has a stock option plan for employees, officers and directors. 

The Company may grant options up to 10% of the aggregate number of common shares outstanding, with no one optionee permitted to 
hold more than 50% of the total options outstanding.  The options vest one-third immediately with an additional one-third on the first and 
second anniversary dates from the grant date and expire in five to ten years from the date of grant.  The expected volatility is based upon 
comparatives of other similar companies.   
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The exercise price of the options is based on the weighted average market price of the shares for the previous five days.  The contractual 
life of the options is five to ten years and there are no cash settlement alternatives.  The weighted-average fair value of options granted for 
the year ended December 31, 2019 was $1.15 per option. 

The Company uses a Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the estimated fair value of the options at the date of grant and the 
associated compensation expense over the life of the options.  A summary of the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing 
model to determine the estimated value is as follows: 

For the years ended December 31  22001199  22001188  

Expected volatility  50% 50% 

Expected dividend rate  0% 0% 

Risk free interest rate  1.33% to 1.63% 2.02% to 2.24% 

Expected forfeiture rate  0% 0% 

Expected life  5 years 5 years 
 

For the years ended December 31  22001199   2018 

   
NNuummbbeerr  ooff  

OOppttiioonnss   

WWeeiigghhtteedd  
AAvveerraaggee    

EExxeerrcciissee  PPrriiccee  
(($$//ooppttiioonn))    

Number of 
Options  

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
($/option) 

Outstanding, beginning of year   442211,,000000   11..0000   0  1.00 
Granted   118800,,000000   11..5500   421,000  1.00 
Forfeited    5533,,000000   11..1155   0  1.00 
Exercised    00   00   0  1.00 

OOuuttssttaannddiinngg,,  eenndd  ooff  yyeeaarr    554488,,000000   11..1155   421,000  1.00 

EExxeerrcciissaabbllee,,  eenndd  ooff  yyeeaarr    331122,,333333   11..0099   140,333 $ 1.00 
 

Subsequent to year end 180,000 stock options were granted at an exercised price of $1.50 per share. Remaining options have 
approximately 8.7 years of remaining life.  

Note 13 Loss per Share 

Basic and diluted loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing net operating loss for the year attributable to common shareholders of 
the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding.  The weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2019 was 5,147,125 (December 31, 2018 – 3,852,861).  As the Company is in a loss 
position, any conversion of options would be anti-dilutive to the loss per share calculation. 
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Note 14 Expenses 

For the years ended December 31   22001199   2018 

Employee costs   $$    11,,663311,,552200   $  751,915 
Less amounts allocated to:        

Intangible assets   ((335522,,663377))   (133,950) 

Employee costs, net of allocations   11,,227788,,888833   617,965 
Office and operating costs   331111,,115588   84,042 
Professional and consulting fees   116699,,006655   53,104 
Travel costs   8811,,887700   66,031 
Other costs   2233,,333377   48,358 

SSeelllliinngg,,  ggeenneerraall  aanndd  aaddmmiinniissttrraattiivvee  
eexxppeennsseess    $$    11,,886644,,331133   $  869,500 

 

Note 15 Related Party Transactions 

The Company transacts with related parties in the normal course of business.  The transactions are measured at the exchange amount, 
which is equivalent to the market rate. 

During the year, a board member was added who’s services the Company uses for general legal counsel, with charges for legal fees 
related to stock issuance, employment matters and general legal totaling $95,000. 

Key management personnel include directors and officers of the Company. In addition to their salaries, key management personnel 
participate in the Company’s stock option plan. The following table shows compensation paid to directors and officers. 

For the years ended December 31    22001199   2018 

Wages and salaries  $$  662277,,000000  $ 451,175 
Share based compensation expense    6633,,662244   71,034 

TToottaall   $$  669900,,662244  $ 522,209 
 

Note 16 Segmented Information 

The Company’s revenues are obtained locally and internationally.  The geographic breakdown of where sales are obtained is listed below: 

For the years ended December 31    22001199  %%  ooff  SSaalleess   2018 % of Sales 

Canada  $$  883300,,998866  8822%%  $ 189,018 95% 
United States    118800,,995511  1188%%   10,000 5% 

TToottaall   $$  11,,001111,,993377  110000%%  $ 199,018 100% 
 

Note 17 Financial Instruments and Risk Management 

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise accounts payables and accrued liabilities.  The Company’s financial assets are comprised of 
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, and accounts receivable that arise directly from its operations.  The Company did not hold or 
issue any derivative financial instruments at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018. 

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.  The Company’s senior management 
oversees the management of these risks and is supported by an appropriate financial risk governance framework.   
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Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates.  The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates primarily to the Company’s cash and restricted 
cash balance. 

The Company has deposited its cash and cash equivalents with a Canadian financial institution in a low risk, interest-bearing account. 

Foreign exchange risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates.  The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating 
activities, where revenue or expenses are denominated in a different currency from the Company’s functional currency. 

The Company transacts its Canadian operations primarily in Canadian dollars; however, it occasionally purchases goods and supplies and 
earns revenue in US dollars.  These transactions and foreign exchange exposure would not typically have a material effect on the financial 
results. 

Credit risk 

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities, primarily for trade accounts receivables including deposits with banks 
and financial institutions. 

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are presented on the statements of consolidated statements of financial 
position and in Notes 4 and 5.  Management reviews the financial strength of the financial institutions on a regular basis. 

Trade accounts receivable of the Company are subject to credit risk. 

The aging of trade accounts receivable (net of allowance) is as follows:  

As at December 31    22001199   2018 

Current  $$  227755,,112255   $  25,632 

31 to 60 days  $$  112211,,119933  $  10,345 

61 to 90 days  $$  111111,,009900  $  5,561 

Over 90 days  $$  114433,,007722  $  11,442 

AAccccoouunnttss  rreecceeiivvaabbllee  ttoottaall   $$  665500,,448800   $  52,980 
 
The maximum exposure risk is limited to the carrying value of financial assets on the Company’s statements of financial position. 

Liquidity risk 

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk or the risk of not meeting its financial obligations as they come due.  At December 31, 2019, the 
Company had positive working capital of $60,510.  The majority of accounts payable are subject to normal 30-day payment terms. The 
Company secured financing totaling $3.5 million from January to March 2020 to fund expansion of operations. 

Capital management  

The Company’s defines capital as shareholders’ equity as operations are financed primarily through equity transactions.  The Company’s 
objectives when managing capital are to sustain its ability to continue as a going concern, maximize returns for shareholders and benefits 
for other stakeholders and provide resources to enable growth. 

The Company manages the capital structure and responds to changes in economic conditions and planned requirements and will continue 
to use cash flows from technology sales and equity offerings to fund operations and invest in its capital expenditure program.  To the extent 
the existing strategy is not sufficient to meet capital demands, other capital strategies may include debt financing and obtaining strategic 
partners to fund a portion of certain development projects.    



|      |46

FIELD SAFE SOLUTIONS 

AS AT, AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

As at and for the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company had a net loss from operations of $1,296,432, negative cash flows from 

continuing operations of $1,003,484, and had an accumulated deficit of $2,521,291.  Management continues to develop the customer 

base and recognizes that the Company must generate positive cash flows or secure additional financial resources in order to meet its 

liabilities as they come due and to enable the Company to continue operations.  During January and February 2020, the Company closed 

a private placement for $3.5 million to fund operations.  Management believes that the entity will continue to be a going concern for the 

foreseeable future. 

Fair value 

Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 

The Company does not have any financial assets or liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss in its consolidated statements 
of financial position. Due to the short-term nature of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, the carrying values equal fair values.   

The Company classifies financial instruments carried at fair value according to the following hierarchy based on the amount of observable 
inputs used to value the instrument as follows: 

Level 1 – Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date.  Active markets are those 
in which transactions occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. 

Level 2 – Pricing inputs are other than unadjusted quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1. Prices in Level 2 are either directly 
or indirectly observable as of the reporting date.  Level 2 valuations are based on inputs, including quoted forward prices for commodities, 
time value and volatility factors, which can be substantially observed or corroborated in the marketplace. The fair value of accounts 
receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying amount due to short term maturities.  

Level 3 – Valuations in this level are those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. 

The fair value of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash have been assessed using the fair value hierarchy described 
above and have been determined using Level 1 inputs.   The Company does not have any financial assets or financial liabilities, held at 
fair value, classified as Level 2 or Level 3 as at December 31, 2019. 

Management’s assessment determined that there was no indication that intangible assets were impaired as at December 31, 2019. 

Note 18 Subsequent Event 

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization. This has resulted 
in governments worldwide, including the Canadian and Alberta governments, taking action to address the resulting economic slowdown. 
The current challenging economic climate may lead to changes in the Company’s cash flows and working capital levels and may also have 
a direct impact on the Company’s operating results and financial position in the future. The Company has assessed the situation and 
currently does not anticipate a significant adverse impact to its operations. However, the situation is dynamic and the ultimate duration and 
magnitude of the impact on the economy and the financial effect on the Company’s business is uncertain at this time. 
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